#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RAYMOND THOMPSON,

Appellant,

APPEAL NO. 69,352

vs .

(CASE NO. 85-899CFA)

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT, SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA - CRIMINAL DIVISION

APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF

JANE D. FISHMAN, ESQ. Counsel for Appellant 8243 Northwest Eighth Place Plantation, Florida 33324 (305) 473-2613 Florida Bar No. 300561

###

#### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant, RAYMOND THOMPSON, was found guilty of first degree murder by a jury on June 5, 1986, (R.Vol.21, 3161). After a full sentencing proceeding on June 20, 1986, the jury recommended that Appellant be sentenced to life imprisonment (R.2896).

Notwithstanding the jury's recommendation of life, the trial judge sentenced Mr. Thompson to die in the electric chair (R.3340-3351). It is from this judgment and sentence of the Circuit Court, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County, Honorable Stanton S. Kaplan presiding, that Mr. Thompson now appeals. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Art.V, Section 3(b)(1), Fla.Const.

In the court below, the State of Florida was the prosecution and Appellant was the defendant.

All references are to the record on appeal and are designated by "R." followed by the appropriate page numbers.

#### STATEMENT OF TEE CASE AND FACTS

In June, 1981, Appellant had a safe installed in the floor of the woodworking shop of Jimmy Savoy (R.1561-2, 1577, 1952). Savoy was an old friend and associate of Appellant (R.901). Friendship notwithstanding, in August, 1981, Savoy rented a jackhammer and dug up his friend's safe (R.1791, 825-6). Savoy sold his business suddenly and fled South Florida with Appellant's safe containing \$600,000; Savoy bought himself a brand new gold Camaro in Jacksonville to make his escape (R.1407-10, 873).

On August 24, 1981, Jimmy Savoy met with his son Richard in Massachusetts. The father told his son that he was in trouble, that he had stolen a safe, and that he needed a locksmith to open the safe. Richard Savoy told his father that he wanted no part of his crime; Jimmy Savoy never spoke to his son Richard again (R.1515, 1518).

Carole McLoughlin, Jimmy Savoy's former girlfriend, testified that Savoy left Florida suddenly in late August, 1981, his business (R.1409-1410). after selling Savoy called McLoughlin several times, and on September 26, McLoughlin met Savoy at a hotel in Pompano (R.1410-1414, 1417). McLoughlin claimed that Savoy was very nervous and afraid. He refused to rent or buy a place to live in his own name, so he paid \$30,000 cash for a trailer and put it in her name (R.1417-1421). Notwithstanding Savoy's supposed terrible fear of being found, he returned to Florida one month after his theft, bought a trailer near some of his former associates, and went to the same

neighborhood bar nearly every day (R.1432, 1529). According to McLoughlin, she visited Savoy at his Boca trailer every other weekend and he telephoned her several times during each week. She spoke to Savoy on March 7, 1982; when she arrived for her weekend visit she found Savoy gone, newspapers on his lawn from Tuesday, March 9, through Friday, March 12, and Savoy's belongings in the trailer (R.1425, 1429). Although McLoughlin never saw or heard from Savoy again, she heard from Jevel Woods, Savoy's neighbor, that Woods saw Savoy at the trailer in May, 1982, (R.1456, 2262-2264). After that conversation with Mrs. Woods, Carole McLoughlin withdrew all the money from the joint bank accounts that Jimmy Savoy had opened for them (R.460).

Bobby Davis, also known as Bobby Vegas, Bobby Allan, Bob Grant, Brad Meyers and Dean Davis (R.1063), worked for Appellant on and off for several years. In the spring of 1984, when his wife was subpoenaed to appear before a federal grand jury, Davis was worried that he was about to be prosecuted for several crimes he committed. He considered fleeing the country, but elected instead to go to the FBI with his promise to solve the Savoy disappearance and other open cases (R.987, 1029-1034).

Davis' decision to go to the FBI rather than flee the country turned out to be a sound investment for Davis. In exchange for his promise to implicate Raymond Thompson, Davis was permitted to plead guilty to three counts of second degree murder with a sentencing promise of no more than ten years on each count, to run concurrently (R.1014, 1156-1157).

In addition, Davis and his wife were supported by the

federal government. Mrs. Davis received more than \$36,000 in subsistence. Also included in Davis' bargain were travel and moving expenses, food, a car and insurance, expense money and even the cost of housing Davis' dog in a kennel (R.1037-1045).

In exchange for cash and a lenient sentence that resolved all of his outstanding charges, Bobby Davis testified that he, Bobby Stephens, Pat Menillo and Appellant killed Jimmy Savoy (R.960). At trial, Bobby Davis told this story:

In September, 1981, Ray Thompson told Davis that Jimmy Savoy had stolen his money. Appellant said he wanted to find Savoy and kill him (R.900, 902). Davis testified that Pat Menillo and Scott Errico were trying to find Savoy for Appellant (R.902).

Menillo and Errico thought they had found Savoy in Massachusetts. According to Davis, he and Appellant flew to Boston based on Menillo and Errico's call, but when they got there, they found not Savoy, but his son (R.903, 917).

Davis said that they all returned to Florida in late September and that, a few weeks later, Appellant found a card at his door from the FBI saying that the FBI knew that Savoy had stolen Appellant's money and that Appellant wanted to kill Savoy (R.905).

Notwithstanding the FBI's communication to Appellant, Davis testified that at that time Appellant told Davis that Appellant was putting an "open contract" out on Jimmy Savoy's life (R.925-926, 1081).

Robbert Tippie, also known as Bobby Dania, testified that he saw Appellant in July, 1981, and that Appellant told him that

Savoy had stolen his \$600,000. Bobby Dania asked Appellant if he thought he'd get the money back. According to Dania, Appellant said, "I don't give a shit about the money. I just want the son of a bitch dead.' (R.1690-1691). Shortly thereafter, Dania said, Appellant offered a man at the race track \$100,000 to find Savoy (R.1693). In exchange for this testimony, Tippie/Dania received immunity from all state and federal prosecutions, cash and direct benefits worth more than \$67,000 for 1985 and for January to April, 1986, and training, job placement and a new identity as part of the witness protection program (R.1697, 1707-1713, 1716).

Bobby Davis, apparently, heard no more about **Jimmy** Savoy until March, 1982, when he received a telephone call from Bobby Stephens, also known as Bobby Weasel (R. 926, 1698, **2040**).

Stephen8 ran a "chop shop", occasionally did some work at Appellant's marina, and, with his wife, often baby-sat for Mr. Thompson's young son, Charlie Boy (R.926, 2139-2140, 2151-2152). Stephens testified against Appellant in exchange for a plea to kidnapping and second degree murder with a 10 year sentence; several other state and federal charges were also disposed of by this plea. Bobby Davis told Stephens that Jimmy Savoy stole \$600,000 from Appellant and that Appellant was looking for Savoy (R.2040, 2150). In March, 1982, Bobby Stephens telephoned Bobby Davis to tell Davis that he had seen Jimmy Savoy at the Cricket Club, a small bar near Stephens' West Boca home and near Savoy's mobile home (R.926-927, 2039-2040).

At this point, Davis' and Stephens' stories begin to differ from each other and from their own prior statements. Davis' said

at trial that he then notified Ray Thompson, Pat Menillo and Scott Errico and that Davis, Menillo and Errico went to the Cricket Club the next night. They met Stephens there, saw that Savoy was there and then planned a car accident so they could grab Savoy. Bobby Stephens then went home while Davis, Menillo and Errico stayed to wait for Savoy (R.926-929).\*1

According to Stephens, however, after he called Bobby Davis he went home. Davis came to his home that night to see him, but they didn't go to the bar (R.2041, 2095). Bobby Davis left Stephens' home but returned at nine the next morning, picked Stephens up and drove him to a bar in Hallandale. There Stephens met with Appellant, Davis, Menillo, and Errico. He told them he thought he'd seen Savoy but wasn't sure if it was him. Davis then drove Stephens back to West Boca and then left. Davis then returned again that night with Menillo and Errico and they all went to the Cricket Club (R.2042-2044, 2095-2098).

At the Cricket Club, Menillo and Errico confirmed that the man was Savoy. They and Davis waited for Savoy to leave the bar. When Savoy came out and got into his Camaro, Menillo and Errico left the parking lot ahead of him in their Chevette. Davis followed Savoy in his Seville (R.929).

At a stoplight, Bobby Davis ran his car into Savoy's. When they got out of their cars to inspect the damage, Errico grabbed

<sup>1/</sup> In his previous statements to the police Davis told a different story that when he got Stephens' phone call he took a taxi right to the Cricket Club, called Menillo and Errico to meet him and they kidnapped Savoy on the first night, without any involvement by Appellant (R.1067, 1099). See, infra, Point I, page 17, for further discussion of this issue.

Savoy and dragged him into Davis' cat. Davis and Menillo were armed with guns, Errico with a knife. They parked the Chevette in a nearby lot, Savoy's Camaro by the side of the road, and then drove back to Bobby Stephens' house (R.930-932, 2044).

Bobby Stephens raid that Davis woke him at four a.m. (R.2044). Davis, Errico, and Menillo took Savoy into Stephens' back bedroom (R.947, 2045). They tied Savoy's hands and feet; when Savoy tried to escape, Bobby Stephen8 threatened him with his gun (R.2046-2047).

The next day Appellant came to Stephenr' house to talk to Savoy (R.2047-2048, 951). Savoy told Appellant that he stole his money, but claimed that it had in turn been stolen from him by a prostitute in South Carolina. According to Bobby Davis, Appellant did not believe Savoy and told Savoy that he would be killed if he didn't return the money and he "could die easy or hard" (R.951). Davis then said that Appellant told him to bring Savoy to Appellant's house, to put him on the boat for the night, and they would kill Savoy the next day (R.952-953). Appellant left Bobby Stephens' house after 45 minutes. After Appellant had left, Bobby Davis instructed Stephens, Errico and Menillo to take Savoy to Appellant's boat, which they did (R.2048-2049, 954).

Bobby Davis guarded Jimmy Savoy down below on the boat that night. The next morning Davis, Bobby Stephens, Pat Menillo, and Appellant took the boat out. Davis had tied Savoy up with ropes; Pat Menillo brought weights and chains which Davis wrapped on to Savoy (R.954-956, 958). Bobby Stephens drove the boat, a 28 foot Scarab, with Appellant and Pat Menillo standing alongside him

throughout (R.2049,2051-2052, 2101, 2103) Bobby Davis remained below with Savoy, but claimed that Appellant also came below to again question Savoy and to order Davis to beat Savoy (R.956-958).

Bobby Davis brought Savoy topside when Bobby Stephens stopped the boat (R.958, 2052-2053). At this point, Bobby Davis' testimony differs radically from Bobby Stephens'. Bobby Davis claimed that he and Pat Menillo stood on either side of Jimmy Savoy with Savoy leaned out over the side of the boat and Appellant behind him. According to Davis, Appellant said "so long, motherfucker", took Davis' gun because he himself was unarmed, and shot Savoy in the back of the head. Davis and Menillo threw the weights overboard and watched Savoy sink (R.959-961).

Bobby Stephens, on the other hand, testified that Davis, Menillo and Appellant were all standing around Savoy when Stephen8 heard a shot. Before the shot, Stephens saw Bobby Davis with Davis' gun. After the shot, when Stephens looked up, he again saw Bobby Davis with the gun. Davis then broke the gun down and threw the pieces overboard. Stephens never saw Appellant with the gun (R.2054-2055, 2123-2124, 962-963).

Appellant asked Stephens to get rid of Savoy's car so Stephens decided to cut it up and dispose of the pieces. Steve Chiappa rented torches and brought them to Stephens who cut the car into fifty small pieces which he dumped in various canals. Stephens dumped the large pieces - the engine block, the transmission and

the rear end of the car about 600 pounds of machinery, in the Johnson Road canal (R.2060, 2057, 2059, 2061, 2104-2105, 964-970, 1789).

In May, 1984, Bobby Davis went to the FBI to work out his deal for testifying against Ray Thompson. In addition to giving numerous, often inconsistent statements, Davis agreed to wear a wire and go see Mr. Thompson in January, 1985, in the hope of eliciting an incriminating statement from him. In that conversation Davis told Appellant that he was asked about Savoy. Appellant asked Davis what he was all excited about and told Davis not to worry, that the police were just shooting in the dark. They then talked about a truck that Davis had borrowed from Appellant, unrelated to the Savoy investigation (R. 2018, 2020, 2024).

Based on Bobby Davis' specific statements to the authorities concerning where in the ocean Savoy's body was left, where the large parts of Savoy's car were dumped, and where the car was torched apart, a widespread investigation for physical evidence was conducted. Bobby Stephens' house was searched, the FBI vacuumed Stephens' garage to test trace evidence, canals were dragged, and pilots and divers searched the pinpointed areas of the ocean for weeks. Notwithstanding this extensive, repeated investigation, no part of Savoy's car was ever found in any canal, the FBI found not even a trace of evidence of Savoy's car in Stephens' garage, nor did the police ever find any trace of the metal chains Savoy was allegedly bound with. Nor has any trace of Savoy's body ever been found (R.1088-1090, 1173, 1289-

1299, 1307-1312, 1328-1340, 1401, 1543-1545, 1814-1817, 1827-1833, 1836-1848, 1849-1853, 1858, 1873-1885, 1887-1890, 2079-2081, 2105, 2138, 2246-2248). Thus, not a single shred of physical evidence was introduced to corroborate Davis' story.

Jewel Woods, Savoy's neighbor at the trailer park testified that she saw Savoy in May, 1982 (R.2262). In addition, Ann Chiappa, a friend of Appellant's and of Jimmy Savoy's, testified that she saw Savoy in late December, 1982 at funeral services for Appellant's seven-year-old son, Charlie Boy, who died when he was hit by a car (R.2320,2322-2323).

#### JESTIONS PRESENTED

Whether the trial court erred in denying Appellant's motion for a new trial where the state failed to disclose critical Brady material to the defense?

Whether the trial court erred in allowing extensive testimony of other crimes and bad acts by Appellant which served only to prove his propensity to commit this crime?

Whether the trial court's failure to dismiss the charge8 against Appellant put Appellant in jeopardy twice, in violation of the state and federal constitutions?

Whether the trial court was without jurisdiction over a homicide committed on the high seas?

Whether the trial court erred in overriding the jury's recommendation of life imprisonment where a reasonable basis for that recommendation appears in the record and the facts suggesting the death penalty are not so clear and convincing that reasonable people could not differ?

Whether the death penalty is unconstitutional on its face or as applied in this case?

#### SUMMARY )F ARGUMENT

#### As to the trial:

Appellant is entitled to a new trial because the State's failure to disclose critical <u>Brady</u> material - a sworn affidavit of the State's star witness inconsistent with his trial testimony - undermines any confidence in the outcome of Appellant's trial.

Appellant is also entitled to a new trial because the trial court improperly allowed extensive testimony as to bad acts and uncharged crimes to be received in evidence making it likely that the jury may have convicted Appellant of this crime because of inadmissible evidence tending to show his bad character or propensity of other crimes.

Appellant is entitled to a reversal of his conviction and a dismissal of the charge8 against him because this trial violated the constitutional protections against double jeopardy. Appellant's first trial was aborted when a state police witness deliberately violated the trial court's order not to mention other homicides that Appellant was alleged to have committed. Where the government provokes a mistrial to gain an advantage over a defendant, retrial is barred by the double jeopardy clauses of the United States and Florida constitutions.

#### As to the death sentence:

There was no reason for the trial judge to override the jury's recommendation of life imprisonment. The jury's recommendation is entitled to great weight and the facts relied

on by the trial judge to support the death penalty are not so clear and convincing that reasonable people could not differ.

The death penalty is unconstitutional on its face and as applied in this particular case.

#### POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN
DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR
A NEW TRIAL DUE TO THE STATE'S
FAILURE TO DISCLOSE BRADY MATERIAL
TO THE DEFENSE

Shortly after his indictment in this case, Appellant filed, on February 12, 1985, a demand for discovery pursuant to Rule 3.220, Fla.R.Crim.P. requesting, inter alia, written or recorded statements, or the substance of oral statements, of any codefendants, and, any exculpatory evidence, including any written or oral statements of any person. See, R.2984, 3003, 3008, 3322, 3295. And, of course, pursuant to Rule 3.220, after demand by a defendant, the prosecutor must disclose the names, addresses and all statements of every person including co-defendants, known to the prosecutor to have information relevant to the charges, or to any defense. Pursuant to Rule 3.220(f) the prosecutor's obligation is a continuing duty.

On October 23, 1985, the State's star witness, Bobby Davis swore to an affidavit in support of the State's request for the extradition of the co-defendant Scott Errico (R.3324, 3312). That affidavit, although known to the State, clearly discoverable, and certainly within the scope of Appellant's demands for discovery and for Brady material, was never turned over to the defense. It was only discovered after the trial in this case through the efforts of Appellant's trial counsel (R.3327).

In spite of the State's clear breach of the discovery

requirements of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, the trial court simply denied Appellant's motion for a new trial. The court did not conduct the evidentiary hearing mandated by law to determine the cause for the breach, the prejudice to the defense and the appropriate sanctions. Richardson v. State, 246 So.2d 771 (Fla.1971). The failure to comply with Richardson is, of course, per se reversible. Brown v. State, So.2d , 12 FLW 577 (Fla. Nov. 12, 1987); State v. Hall, 509 So.2d 1093 (Pla. 1987).

In addition, the prosecutor's obligation is not merely statutory, but is a constitutional duty under the due process clause to produce evidence favorable to the accused, which tends to exculpate him or which tends to indicate bias, interest or inconsistent statements on the part of a witness.

Brady v.

Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963); United States v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97 (1976); Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150, 154 (1972); United States v. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667 (1985). Notwithstanding its statutory and constitutional obligation, the State in the instant case failed to disclose to the defense this prior sworn statement of its star witness, Bobby Davis. On that ground, Appellant is entitled to a new trial.

Miller v. Wainwright, F.Supp.

(Mem.Op. Case No. 83-849-Civ-T-13) (M.D.Fla. Nov. 13, 1987).

In <u>Miller</u>, the State withheld impeachment and exculpatory material from the defense. The evidence withheld in <u>Miller</u> was two police reports; one suggested that the crime was committed at a time other than that sworn to by the eyewitnesses and the other repeated a statement by the main eyewitness that she said she

possibly dreamt the crime. This latter statement was similar to another statement by the same witness that the defense did have available to it at trial. Nevertheless, the federal district court held:

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