IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RAYMOND THOMPSON,)
Appellant	,	
V S .		APPEAL NO. $69,352$ (Case No. $85-899$ CFA)
STATE OF FLORIDA,		
Appellee.		
		APR 6 1908
		CLERK, DECLARE COURT
	ANSWER BRIEF O	

On Appeal from the Circuit Court, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County, Florida [Criminal Division]

> ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

DEBORAH GULLER Assistant Attorney General 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (305) 837-5062

Counsel for Appellee

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant was the defendant in the Circuit Court, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Broward County, Florida. Appellee was the prosecution below. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(1), Florida Constitution.

STATMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Appellee accepts the Statement of the Case and Facts as presented on page two (2) through ten (10) of the Appellant's Initial Brief to the extent the statement is accurate with the following additions and/or modifications.

 The exact amount of money in the safe was never established beyond an amount "over \$400,000."

2. The statement that witness Bobby Davis and his wife were supported by the federal governemnt is a myopic interpretation of participation in the witness protection program.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

POINT I

The Appellant failed to preserve the <u>Brady</u> issue in that his Motions for Discovery were not inclusive as to an affidavit in <u>another</u> case. Any error is harmless as the affidavit did not contain evidence which affected the guilt

- 1 -

determining process. The contents of the affidavit was more prejudicial to Appellant than not.

POINT II

Appellant's multiple assertions of prejudice resulting from alleged references to his bad character or propensity to commit crime are illusory and/or not preserved for appellate review. Allegations as to evidence of "threats" made to the victims family are, on the whole, unsupportable, as are the allegations of impropriety in the admission of testimony of "witness protection programs" and "hugh sums of money." The allegations as to drug and alcohol use are without merit. The witnesses testified to their own use, defense counsel opened the door to this line of questioning and the issue was not preserved as to each allegation. Evidence as to the witnesses testimony in other cases did not prejudice Appellant. The alleged cumulative impact is nugatory as other allegations of error, supra, are without substance.

POINT III

There was no violation of double jeopardy standards. The Appellant motioned for mistrial at the first trial, not the Appellee. The Appellee did not provoke the mistrial.

POINT IV

State and Federal jurisdiction over the high seas is concurrent <u>sub judice</u> as essential elements of the crime were committed in Florida. The essential element of premeditation

- 2 -

occurred in Florida, as did the kidnapping. There was no question raised at trial as to jurisdiction and the jury instruction was to venue; there was no objection to the instruction.

POINT V

The trial court's override of the recommended life sentence was proper as the mitigating circumstances were found to be without substance. The aggravating factors, <u>sub judice</u>, provided the trial court with the mandate to override. There was no overlap in aggravating circumstances as to one set of facts, the prior conviction is not too remote in time, the crime was committed while Appellant was engaged in the commission of a kidnapping in a heinous, atrocious or cruel manner, and it was done in a cold calculated and premeditated manner for pecuniary gain.

POINT VI

The Constitutionality of Florida's capital sentencing statute, §921.141, <u>Ela_Stat</u>, has been upheld by this Court. As applied, <u>subjudice</u>, the capital sentence is Constitutional. Allegations of acquittal of the instant murder in federal court are without merit.

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DENIED APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR MISTRIAL, AS THERE WAS NO BRADY VIOLATION.

Appellant alleges that his cause was prejudiced by the prosecution's failure to supply an affidavit, sworn to by one of the state's main witnesses <u>sub judice</u>. The crux of Appellant's allegations of prejudice is that the credibility of the affiant could have been further impeached had his affidavit been supplied to defense counsel in timely fashion.' The affidavit was a document obtained in the case of <u>State v. Errico</u>. (R. **3324**). The issue is whether the "prosecution ... withholds evidence on demand of an accused which, if made available, would tend to exculpate him or reduce the penalty" <u>Brady v. Maryland</u>, **373** U.S. **87, 88 (1963)**. Appellee has determined, and will demonstrate forthwith, why Appellant's argument fails. Affirmation of Appellant's guilt is mandated.

On August 21, 1986 Appellant's counsel filed an "Index of Exhibits Filed with Motion for New Trial" (R. 3322), the Motion for New Trial was filed on August 20, 1986. (R. 3295-3310). Exhibit C of said Index (R. 3324) is the Affidavit that was allegedly withheld from defense counsel. Appellant's defense counsel obtained the affidvait on August 6, 1986.

¹ Upon receipt of the transcript of the hearing regarding the alleged <u>Brady</u> violation from the State Attorney's office, Appellee will motion this Court to Supplement the Record and Brief. The Prosecutor indicates the circumstances under which the affidavit was prepared further bolsters Appellee's argument.

Any alleged prejudice is solely illusory as the <u>only</u> information not elicited at trial was that Davis in his October 23, 1985 affidavit swore that Appellant told him that the cash amount stolen by the victim was "approximately \$500,000". (R. 3324). The testimony of Davis at trial and/or deposition was that the dollar amount was either \$600,000 or over \$400,000. The value of an impeachment based on an affidavit where the approxi-<u>mate</u> amount given is between the two figures testified to, is nugatory.

The validity of the alleged <u>Brady</u> violation must be determined with deference to the numerous cases that have interpreted the mandate of the Supreme Court. In <u>United States</u> <u>v. Agurs</u>, **427** U.S. **97 (1976)** the Court explicated the three basic situations where <u>Brady</u> applies. <u>Agurs</u> at **103.** The second situation encompasses "a pretrial request for specific evidence." <u>Id.</u> at **104.** Appellee first notes that Appellant made four requests for discovery information.

> 1. The complete criminal history records of any State witness who has or will give testimony against the Defendant in the case at bar.

(R. 2984, 3008).

2. Defendant ... moves this Court to issue an order requiring the State of Florida to reveal any agreement entered into between the State of Florida, the United States Attorney, or any other law enforcement agency and any prosecution witness ...

(R. 3000, 3008)

3. [P]ursuant to Rule of Criminal Procefure 3.220(a) (1)(i)(ii), moves this Court to enter an order compelling the State Attorney to disclose to defense counsel the following: All investigative Reports made by any federal or local agencies including but not limited to the F.B.I., DEA and IRS.

(R. 3010). The basis of number three was to secure information that "a law enforcement officer's credibility may be impeached through use of his reports to show prior statements inconsistent with his trial tesitmony." (R. 3010, 3011).

> 4. All documents and tangible objects, including but not limited to memorandum, medical reports, transcripts, notes and audio and video tapes, containing or reflecting information regarding psychiatric and/or drug abuse treatment that any state civilian witness, specifically icnluding Bobby Davis has been or is presently receiving.

(R. 3025).

The above recitation of Requests for Discovery do not cover <u>affidavits</u> given in other prosecutions. Appellee maintains that defense counsel, by an act of omission, has not preserved a basis for a <u>Brady</u> claim.

Notwithstanding, Appellee, in the alternative posits, assuming <u>arguendo</u> there was a <u>Brady</u> violation, that Appellant was not prejudiced; and any claims to the contrary are without substance.²

² Appellant references R. **3295** wherein it is alleged that Defendant filed a Demand for Discovery pursuant to Rule **3.220**. Appellee maintains that the alleged February **12**, **1985** Demand is not in the record. (R. Vol. **20** p. **2** Index).

The Appellant's Motion for New Trial (R. 3295), which is the sum and substance of Appellant's <u>Brady</u> allegations, indicates the innocuous nature of the affidavit allegedly withheld. The contents of the affidavit (R. 3324-26) do not "have a definite impact on the credibility of [the] <u>important</u> prosecution witness." <u>United States v. Pitt</u>, 717 F.2d 1334, 1339 (11th Cir. 1983) quoting <u>Calley v. Callaway</u>, 519 F.2d 184 (5th Cir. 1975). Preliminarily and contrary to Appellant's allegations, there was no <u>Richardson</u> violation.³ The state filed with defense counsel a list of state witnesses. (R. 3045, wherein defense motions to strike). Further, <u>Richardson</u> and its progeny address allegations of discovery violations at trial where corrective action, if required, may be taken.

> [W]hen it is brought to the attention of the trial court <u>during the course of the</u> <u>proceedings</u> that the state has failed to comply with the Rule the Court has a discretion to determine if such failure has prejudiced the defendant on trial.

<u>Richardson</u> at 776 (emphasis added). <u>Richardson</u> is inapposite <u>sub</u> judice.

On the merits of Appellant's front line attack of an alleged <u>Brady</u> violation, Appellee, based on due process constituional precepts states:

Unless the omission deprived the defendant of a fair trial, there was no consittutional violation requiring that the verdict be set aside; and absent a constitutional violation,

^{3 &}lt;u>Richardson v. State</u>, 246 So.2d 771 (Fla. 1971).

there was no breach of the prosecutor's constitutional duty to disclose.

<u>United States v. Agurs</u>, **427** U.S. **97, 108 (1976).** The standard by which constitutional error is determined is materiality, and must be viewed "in the context of the entire record." <u>Agurs</u> at **112.**

[I]f evidence actually has no probative significance at all, no purpose would be served by requriing a new trial

Aqurs at 110. Even if, as alleged by Petitioner, this one affidavit was dispositive of the affiant's credibility as to create extreme doubt as to his motives, a new trial is not mandated as the testimony of the affiant, Bobby Davis, was not "determinative of guilt or innocence." Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150, 154 (1972). State witnesses, especially Bobby Stephens (R. 2031) present substantial and competent evidence, albeit circumstantial, of Appellant's guilt. Robert Tippie testified that Appellant offered \$100,000 to a man if he could find Savoy. (R. 1693, 1694). Bobby Stephens testified that he worked for Appellant (R. 2050); and that Appellant was one of the men on the boat from which Savoy was thrown after he was shot (R. 2051); Appellant instructed Bobby Davis and Pat Menillo to bring Savoy up from below deck, Appellant was giving the orders. (R. 2052). The Appellant was standing behind Savoy when he was shot. (R. 2053-55).

The preceding standards, used to determine the effect to the alleged lack of disclosure of impeachment material was refined in <u>United States v. Baqley</u>, **473** U.S. **667** (1985). It is

- 8 -

this final refinement that Appellee relies upon to discredit Appellant's allegations of error, assuming a request was made for materials sworn to in another prosecution of another defendant. The <u>Agurs</u> triparte standard of materiality was restated in <u>Bagley</u>.

> The evidence is material only if there is a reasonable probability that, had the evidence been disclosed to the defense, the result of the proceeding would have been different. A "reasonable probability" is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.

<u>Bagley</u> at **682.** The <u>Bagley</u> Court also formulated a standard by which this Court may review the totality of circumstances.

[T]he reviewing court may consider directly any adverse effect that the prosecutor's failure to respond might have had on the preparation, or presentation of the defendant's case.

<u>Bagley</u> at 683. <u>Sub judice</u>, any document withheld, and Appellee strongly denies a <u>Brady</u> violation, would not have altered the effect of the extensive impeachment of witness/affiant Bobby Davis. Defense counsel had deposed Bobby Davis and had opportunity to elicit any and all prior statements.

Appellant's first substantive allegation as to the trial value of the alleged impeachment evidence in the affidavit regards the affiant's trial testimony about the kidnapping of the victim, James Savoy. At trial Bobby Davis testified on direct examination that Bobby Stephens called him with information that Savoy was at the Cricket Club. (R. 926-928). Pat Menillo and

- 9 -

Scott Errico went into the Cricket Club for a few hours and they, along with the affiant, planned a car accident in order to effectuate Savoy's kidnapping pursuant to Appellant's orders. (R. 929-931). They subsequently brought Savoy to Stephen's (R. 932). The Appellant was informed that Savoy was house. being held, and the following day Appellant directed that Savoy be brought to his Hallandale home and be kept on his boat. (R. **950-954).** Bobby Davis testified, and this factor ties Appellant in further, that after Appellant's unsuccessful search for Savoy, Appellant put out a contract on Savoy's life. (R. 926, 1080-It is coincidential that Appellant's own "men" brought 81). Savoy in, thereby connecting him explicitly with the kidnapping. Davis' affidavit does tie in Appellant and is not an inconsistent statement. The affidavit, as a whole (R. 3324-3326), implicates Appellant--his money was stolen, he and the affiant went to Boston (R. 1074, 3324) to find Savoy and his "employee's'' (R. 887, 888, 1199, 1689, 1698, 2041, 2043) called the day subsequent to the kidnapping--the kidnapping was accomplished and they needed further instructions. Defense counsel, as to this subissue - the kidnapping - extensively impeached Bobby Davis as to contradictions in the dates of the kidnapping (R. 1074-75), not that it did not occur. Davis testified that once in Boston he and Scott Errico thought they had found Savoy, Sr. They actually found Savoy, Jr.

> Q: [Prosecutor] If it would have been James Savoy, Sr. what were you planning to do?

> > - 10 -

A: [Davis] We would have grabbed him.

Q: what would you have done with him?

A: Well the plans, if it was Jimmie Savoy, was to grab him and hold him to call Ray [Appellant] and find out what to do next.

Q: Why would you have called Ray?

A: He's the one we worked for.

(R. 916, 917). Other witnesses tied Appellant in with the kidnapping. Robert Tippie testified that Appellant offered him \$100,000.00 to find Savoy. (R. 1693). Robert Stephens testified that he tried calling Appellant when he first spotted Savoy, but couldn't get through, and therefore called Bobby Davis. (R. 2040).

The affidavit alleged to be wrongfully withheld further ties Appellant in with the kidnapping. Bobby Davis was impeached as to his testimony regarding the date, place and time of the kidnapping. The affidavit does not say Appellant participated or did not participate <u>actively</u> in the initial kidnapping of Savoy. But implicitly Petitioner is implicated.

> I was associated with a group of people, including SCOTT ERRICO, who were involved in a large drug smuggling ring directed by Raymond Michael Thompson.

(R. 3324). Explicitly, the Appellant is implicated in the subsequent and continued kidnapping of Savoy. Paragraph 12 of the affidavit:

After Thompson questioned Savoy we were instructed to take him to Thompson's house at

- 11 -

460 Sunset Isle, Hallandale, Broward County, Florida.

(R. 3325). Trial testimony of Bobby Davis (R. 903, 917, 951), and Bobby Stephens (R. 2040, 2048-50) further implicate Appellant in the kidnapping. It was pursuant to his instructions that Savoy was transported from Stephens' home to Appellant's home/boat where he was further restrained. (R. 953).

Petitioner's next allegation of resulting prejudice concerns the amount of money Bobby Davis stated Appellant said was stolen. In the affidavit Bobby Davis said the amount allegedly stolen was "approximately \$500,000." (R. 3324). (See f.n. 1). On direct examination, Davis testified that he was told by Appellant that "over \$400,000" was stolen. (R. 949, 957). On cross examination, defense counsel impeached this testimony. Davis testified that he never was told \$600,000. was taken. (R. 1054, 1063, 1069, 1187-89).

> Q: [Defense Counsel] All right, sir. Do you recall telling Special Agent Parrish that it was \$600,000?

A: [Bobby Davis] No, sir, I always thought it was \$400,000.

Q: So you never told him \$600,000?

A: I'm not sure if I did or not but I always thought it was over **400,000**.

Q: You never remember using the term \$600,000?

A: No, I don't.

Q: And you have no recollection of telling Special Agent Parrish that it was allegedly \$600,000?

A: Like I said, I always thought it was over 400,000.

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